| | | | D.a. |
|--|---|--|---|
| 09065039 | UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMM Washington, D.C. 20549 | | OMB APPROVAL OMB Number: 3235-0123 Expires: February 28, 2010 Estimated average burden |
| | ANNUAL AUDITED REP FORM X-17A-5 PART III | | SECUR SEC FILE NUMBER |
| Information Re Securitie | FACING PAGE quired of Brokers and Dealers Purs es Exchange Act of 1934 and Rule 1 | Washington, D suant to Sectio 7a-5 Thereun | n 17 of the 1/12 2000 |
| REPORT FOR THE PERIOD BEG | INNING July 1, 2008 A | ND ENDING | June 30, 2009 DIVISION OF TRADING & MARKETS MM/DD/YY |
| | A. REGISTRANT IDENTIFICAT | ION | |
| NAME OF BROKER-DEALER: | Recom Securities, Inc. | | OFFICIAL USE ONLY |
| | E OF BUSINESS: (Do not use P.O. Box N tmoreland Lane | 0.) | FIRM I.D. NO. |
| | (No. and Street) | al na hanna ann an a | |
| | lis MN (State) | 55426 | (Zip Code) |
| (City) NAME AND TELEPHONE NUM Merie Lev | BER OF PERSON TO CONTACT IN REG | ARD TO THIS RI 952-545 | EPORT |
| eesse var men min in the second s | B. ACCOUNTANT IDENTIFICA | ΤΙΟΝ | |
| | UNTANT whose opinion is contained in thi Flom & Co., P.L.L.P. (Name – if individual, state last, first, | | |
| (Address) | vay 169 South, Suite 820, Minneapo (City) | olis, MN 55426 (State) |) (Zip Code) |
| CHECK ONE: Certified Public Accountant | countant | | |
| Accountant not res | ident in United States or any of its possessi | ons. | |
| | FOR OFFICIAL USE ONL | Y | |

ıł

*Claims for exemption from the requirement that the annual report be covered by the opinion of an independent public accountant must be supported by a statement of facts and circumstances relied on as the basis for the exemption. See Section 240.17a-5(e)(2)

Potential persons who are to respond to the collection of information contained in this form are not required to respond unless the form displays a currently valid OMB control number.

OATH OR AFFIRMATION

| I, | Merle Levitt | | , swear (or affirm) that, to the best of |
|--------|---|-------------|---|
| | knowledge and belief the accompanying financial state | ement and | supporting schedules pertaining to the firm of |
| | Recom Securities, Inc. | | , as |
| of | June 30, 2 | o <u>09</u> | , are true and correct. I further swear (or affirm) that |
| | her the company nor any partner, proprietor, principal | officer of | r director has any proprietary interest in any account |
| | sified solely as that of a customer, except as follows: | | |
| oras | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | |
| | | | hill l |
| | • | | Mah Q |
| | | | Signature |
| | | | l |
| (| Δ | F | President |
| | | | Title |
| | MAMA X M. DAIDUM | | |
| | KIWNUL / / / / ///// | | DIANA L. MULLIGAN |
| | Notary Public | | NOTARY PUBLIC - MINNESOTA |
| Thi | s report ** contains (check all applicable boxes): | | MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 1-31-10 |
| | (a) Facing Page. | Em | |
| X | (b) Statement of Financial Condition. | | 1-31-10 |
| X | (c) Statement of Income (Loss). | | |
| X | (d) Statement of XXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXXX | | |
| K | (e) Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity or | | |
| | (f) Statement of Changes in Liabilities Subordinated | to Claim | s of Creditors. |
| X | (g) Computation of Net Capital. | · | Durante to Bulo 1502 2 |
| X | (h) Computation for Determination of Reserve Requi(i) Information Relating to the Possession or Contro | I Poquire | rursuant to Rule 1563-3. |
| ⊠ ∐ | (i) A Reconciliation including appropriate explanation | on of the | Computation of Net Capital Under Rule 15c3-1 and the |
| L/A | (j) A Reconciliation, including appropriate explanate Computation for Determination of the Reserve R | equireme | nts Under Exhibit A of Rule 15c3-3. |
| | (k) A Reconciliation between the audited and unaudi | ited State | ments of Financial Condition with respect to methods of |
| | consolidation. | | • |
| X | (1) An Oath or Affirmation. | | |
| Ū | (m) A copy of the SIPC Supplemental Report. | | |
| | (n) A report describing any material inadequacies four | nd to exis | t or found to have existed since the date of the previous audit |

 χ (o) Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Accounting Control **For conditions of confidential treatment of certain portions of this filing, see section 240.17a-5(e)(3).

CONTENTS

| | <u>Page</u> |
|---|-------------|
| INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT | 1 |
| FINANCIAL STATEMENTS | |
| Statements of Financial Condition | 2 |
| Statements of Income (Loss) | 3 |
| Statements of Changes in Shareholder's Equity | 4 |
| Statements of Cash Flows | 5 |
| Notes to Financial Statements | 6 – 9 |
| INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION REQUIRED BY RULE 17A-5 OF THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION | 10 |
| SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION | |
| Computations Pursuant to Rule 15c3-1 | 11 |
| Computation for Determination of Reserve Requirements Under Rule 15c3-3 | 12 |



Lehrman, Flom & Co., PL.L.P.

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

600 Highway 169 South, Suite 820 Minneapolis, MN 55426 952-546-5306 fax 952-546-8882 www.lehrmanflom.com Arnold Lehrman, CPA Harvey Z. Flom, CPA Miles H. Locketz, CPA, ABV Stephen P. Exley, CPA, CFP Stanley E. Eisenberg, CPA Nancy S. Lehrman, CPA

Independent Auditors' Report

Arthur B. Summerfield, CPA (1938-2005) Morris Lehrman, CPA (1920-2002)

The Board of Directors Recom Securities, Inc. 8501 Westmoreland Lane Minneapolis, Minnesota 55426

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial condition of Recom Securities, Inc. (a Minnesota corporation) as of June 30, 2009 and 2008, and the related statements of income (loss), changes in shareholder's equity, and cash flows for the years then ended that you are filing pursuant to rule 17a-5 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Recom Securities, Inc. at June 30, 2009 and 2008, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Lehrmen, alom + Co., P.L.L.P.

October 30, 2009

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

June 30, 2009 and 2008

| | 2009 | | 2008 | |
|---|------|--|---|--|
| ASSETS | | | | |
| Cash and cash equivalents Receivables from clearing organization and other Loans receivable - officers Marketable securities owned Refundable income taxes Property and equipment, at cost, less accumulated depreciation of \$48,599 (June 30, 2008) Other assets | \$ | 125,657 25,485 273,000 6,247 2,144 - 400 | \$ 112,564 30,271 315,000 19,800 1,945 - 400 | |
| | \$ | 432,933 | \$ 479,980 | |
| LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY | | | | |
| Accounts payable and accrued expenses Total liabilities | \$ | 7,736 7,736 | \$ 10,118 10,118 | |
| Common stock, par value \$.10 per share Authorized 25,000 shares Issued and outstanding 2,000 shares Additional paid-in capital Retained earnings Total shareholder's equity | | 200 19,800 405,197 425,197 | 200 19,800 449,862 469,862 | |
| | \$ | 432,933 | \$ 479,980 | |

See accompanying notes

٠

STATEMENTS OF INCOME (LOSS)

Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

| | 2009 | 2008 |
|--|--|---|
| REVENUES Commissions and principal transactions Interest | \$ 533,251 <u>120,331</u> 653,582 | \$ 713,712 208,250 921,962 |
| EXPENSES Employee compensation and benefits Clearing costs Occupancy and equipment rental Taxes, other than income taxes Other operating expenses | 276,305 126,128 91,104 16,585 431,788 941,910 | 370,474 189,049 117,333 24,547 215,914 917,317 |
| INCOME (LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS | (288,328) | 4,645 |
| Gain on sale of customer accounts | 243,763 | |
| INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAXES | (44,565) | 4,645 |
| Income taxes | 100 | 1,326 |
| NET INCOME (LOSS) | \$ (44,665) | \$ 3,319 |

See accompanying notes

.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY

Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

| | | mmon tock | I | dditional Paid-in Capital | Retained Earnings | Totals |
|---------------------------|----------|--------------|----|---------------------------------|----------------------|---------------|
| Balances at June 30, 2007 | \$ | 200 | \$ | 19,800 | \$ 446,543 | \$ 466,543 |
| Net income - 2008 | | | | | 3,319 | 3,319 |
| Balances at June 30, 2008 | | 200 | | 19,800 | 449,862 | 469,862 |
| Net loss - 2009 | <u>.</u> | | | | (44,665) | (44,665) |
| Balances at June 30, 2009 | \$ | 200 | \$ | 19,800 | \$ 405,197 | \$ 425,197 |

See accompanying notes

.

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended June 30, 2009 and 2008

| | 2009 | | 2008 | |
|---|-------------|--|------|---|
| ASSETS | | | | |
| Cash and cash equivalents Receivables from clearing organization and other Loans receivable - officers Marketable securities owned Refundable income taxes Property and equipment, at cost, less accumulated depreciation of \$48,599 (June 30, 2008) Other assets | \$ | 125,657 25,485 273,000 6,247 2,144 - 400 | \$ | 112,564 30,271 315,000 19,800 1,945 - 400 |
| | \$ | 432,933 | \$ | 479,980 |
| LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDER'S EQUITY | | | | |
| Accounts payable and accrued expenses Total liabilities | _\$ | 7,736 7,736 | \$ | <u>10,118</u> 10,118 |
| Common stock, par value \$.10 per share Authorized 25,000 shares Issued and outstanding 2,000 shares Additional paid-in capital Retained earnings Total shareholder's equity | | 200 19,800 405,197 425,197 432,933 | | 200 19,800 449,862 469,862 479,980 |
| | | +32,933 | Ψ | 773,300 |

See accompanying notes

•

.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. NATURE OF BUSINESS AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Business: The Company is a discount commission broker-dealer registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission. Its business consists primarily of soliciting and servicing customer accounts which are introduced on a fully disclosed basis to a carrying broker-dealer. The Company does not carry customer accounts or effect transactions on a principal basis. Income is derived primarily from commissions on introduced business. Prior to the sale of its customer accounts on April 30, 2009, the Company conducted its business from offices in Minneapolis, MN and Chicago, IL (See note 9). The Company remains a licensed broker-dealer with licenses to operate in 39 states and Washington, DC.

Marketable Securities Owned: Marketable securities are valued at market value, except for those securities that are not readily marketable, which are valued at fair value as determined by management.

Commission Income and Clearing Costs: Commission income and related clearing expenses are recorded on a trade date basis as securities transactions occur.

Advertising Costs: The Company does not engage in direct-response advertising. All advertising costs are charged to operations as incurred and were \$9,511 and \$10,555 for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Depreciation: The Company records depreciation of equipment by use of accelerated methods of computation.

Statements of Cash Flows: For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Company considers liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Use of Estimates: The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

2. LOANS RECEIVABLE – OFFICERS

This is an unsecured demand note due from the sole shareholder of the Company with an annual interest rate of .75%. The prior year's receivable was a non-interest bearing note due from an officer-employee of the Company.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. RETIREMENT PLAN

The Company has a defined contribution profit sharing plan covering all full-time employees of the Company who have completed one year of service and are age 21 or older. Contributions to the Plan are determined each year by the Board of Directors. For the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 contributions were \$-0-.

4. COMMITMENTS

The Company occupied office space on a month to month basis in Minneapolis and pursuant to a lease agreement in Chicago that expires December 2010. The agreements provide for basic monthly rentals plus a pro rata share of operating costs and real estate taxes. In addition, the Company has various rental agreements, primarily month-to-month, for office equipment. Rentals under all agreements amounted to \$91,104 and \$117,333 for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

At June 30, 2009, future basic rentals on the Chicago lease are as follows:

| Year ending June 30, | 2010 2011 | _ | 16,800 8,400 |
|----------------------|--------------|---|-----------------|
| | | = | \$ 25,200 |

5. NET CAPITAL REQUIREMENT

The Company is subject to the Securities and Exchange Commission Uniform Net Capital Rule (SEC Rule 15c3-1), which requires the maintenance of minimum net capital and requires that the ratio of aggregate indebtedness to net capital, both as defined, shall not exceed 15 to 1. At June 30, 2009, the Company had net capital of \$148,716 which was \$48,716 in excess of its required net capital of \$100,000. The Company's net capital ratio was .05 to 1.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

6. INCOME TAXES

The provision for income taxes consists of the following:

| | | June | | |
|--|----|----------|----|--------------|
| | 2 | 009 | | 2008 |
| Current Federal States Realized tax benefit due to net operating loss | \$ | - 100 | \$ | 1,026 895 |
| carryover | | | | (595) |
| | \$ | 100 | \$ | 1,326 |

In 2009 and prior years the Company incurred net operating losses that are available for carryforward to future years. Due to the uncertainty as to the use of these carryforwards, an income tax benefit has not been recorded as a deferred tax asset since it is totally offset by a valuation allowance.

At June 30, 2009, net operating losses in the amounts of \$41,000 (federal), \$170,000 (Minnesota) and \$24,000 (Illinois) are available for carryforward to offset future taxable income. These carryovers expire between the years ending June 30, 2017 and 2029. The deferred tax benefit of these losses is \$23,000.

7. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that could potentially subject the Company to credit risk include cash on deposit with financial institutions that exceed amounts insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. At June 30, 2009 and 2008, uninsured amounts were \$0 and \$20,000, respectively.

8. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE SHEET RISK

In the normal course of business, the Company's activities primarily involve executions, settlement and financing of various securities transactions through a clearing organization. This may expose the Company to risk in the event the clearing organization is unable to fulfill its contractual obligations.

The Company is exposed to off-balance sheet risk of loss on unsettled transactions in the event customers are unable to fulfill contractual obligations within three business days after trade date.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONCLUDED)

9. SALE OF BUSINESS AND NON COMPETE AGREEMENT

On April 30, 2009, the customer accounts of Recom Securities, Inc. (the Company) were sold to York Securities, Inc. (York) for a base purchase price of \$250,000. In addition, York will pay the Company additional amounts of \$350,000 provided certain contingencies are met within the three year period ending April 30, 2012. As of June 30, 2009, \$20,000 of the contingent purchase price has been met. Merle Levitt, sole shareholder of the Company, and the Company have agreed not to compete with York in the sale of marketable securities to the public during the period ending April 30, 2012.

* * * * *



Lehrman, Flom & Co., P.L.L.P.

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

600 Highway 169 South, Suite 820 Minneapolis, MN 55426 952-546-5306 fax 952-546-8882 www.lehrmanflom.com Arnold Lehrman, CPA Harvey Z. Flom, CPA Miles H. Locketz, CPA,ABV Stephen P. Exley, CPA,CFP Stanley E. Eisenberg, CPA Nancy S. Lehrman, CPA

Arthur B. Summerfield, CPA Independent Auditors' Report on Supplementary Information (1938-2005) Required by Rule 17a-5 of the Securities and Exchange Commission Morris Lehrman, CPA (1920-2002)

The Board of Directors Recom Securities, Inc. 8501 Westmoreland Lane Minneapolis, Minnesota 55426

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Recom Securities, Inc. as of and for the years ended June 30, 2009 and 2008 and have issued our report thereon dated October 30, 2009. Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The information contained in the accompanying pages 11 and 12 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements, but is supplementary information required by rule 17a-5 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Lehrmen, Alom + Co., P.L.L.P.

October 30, 2009

COMPUTATIONS PURSUANT TO RULE 15c3-1

June 30, 2009

NET CAPITAL

| Total shareholder's equity qualified for net capital | \$ | 425,197 |
|---|---------|-------------------------------|
| Deductions and/or charges Non-allowable assets Loan receivable - officer Refundable income taxes Other assets | | (273,000) (2,144) (400) |
| | | 149,653 |
| Net capital before haircuts on securities positions (tentative net capital) Haircuts on trading and investment securities Marketable securities | | (937) |
| Net capital | \$ | 148,716 |
| AGGREGATE INDEBTEDNESS | | |
| Items included in statement of financial condition Accounts payable and accrued expenses | \$ | 7,736 |
| Total aggregate indebtedness | \$ | 7,736 |
| Ratio: Aggregate indebtedness to net capital | <u></u> | .05 to 1 |
| COMPUTATION OF BASIC NET CAPITAL REQUIREMENT | | |
| Minimum net capital required | \$ | 515 |
| Minimum dollar net capital requirement of reporting broker or dealer | \$ | 100,000 |
| Excess net capital | \$ | 48,716 |
| Excess net capital at 1000% | \$ | 147,942 |
| RECONCILIATION WITH COMPANY'S COMPUTATION (Included in Part II of Form X-17a-5 as of June 30, 2009) | | |
| Net capital, as reported in Company's Part II (unaudited) FOCUS report | \$ | 148,716 |
| Net capital, per above | \$ | 148,716 |

COMPUTATION FOR DETERMINATION OF RESERVE REQUIREMENTS UNDER RULE 15c3-3 June 30, 2009

Recom Securities, Inc. is exempt from the requirement under rule 15c3-3(k)(2)(ii) as follows:

All customer transactions were cleared through another broker-dealer on a fully disclosed basis. The clearing firm is Ridge Clearing and Outsourcing Solutions, Inc.

Washington, DC 110

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION WASHINGTON, D.C.

4

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL

RECOM SECURITIES, INC. Year Ended June 30, 2009



Lehrman, Flom & Co., P.L.L.P.

Certified Public Accountants & Consultants

600 Highway 169 South, Suite 820 Minneapolis, MN 55426 952-546-5306 fax 952-546-8882 www.lehrmanflom.com Arnold Lehrman, CPA Harvey Z. Flom, CPA Miles H. Locketz, CPA, ABV Stephen P. Exley, CPA, CFP Stanley E. Eisenberg, CPA Nancy S. Lehrman, CPA

Arthur B. Summerfield, CPA (1938-2005) Morris Lehrman, CPA (1920-2002)

Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Required by SEC Rule 17a-5(g)(1) for a Broker-Dealer Claiming an Exemption from SEC Rule 15c3-3

Board of Directors Recom Securities, Inc. Minneapolis, Minnesota

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of Recom Securities, Inc. (the Company), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2009, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, we considered the Company's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

Also, as required by rule 17a-5(g)(1) of the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC), we have made a study of the practices and procedures followed by the Company including consideration of control activities for safeguarding securities. This study included tests of such practices and procedures that we considered relevant to the objectives stated in rule 17a-5(g) in making the periodic computations of aggregate indebtedness (or aggregate debits) and net capital under rule 17a-3(a)(11) and for determining compliance with the exemptive provisions of rule 15c3-3. Because the Company does not carry securities accounts for customers or perform custodial functions relating to customer securities, we did not review the practices and procedures followed by the Company in any of the following:

- 1. Making quarterly securities examinations, counts, verifications, and comparisons and recordation of differences required by rule 17a-13
- 2. Complying with the requirements for prompt payment for securities under Section 8 of Federal Reserve Regulation T of the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System

The management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal control and the practices and procedures referred to in the preceding paragraph. In fulfilling this responsibility, estimates and judgments by management are required to assess the expected benefits and related costs of controls and of the practices and procedures referred to in the

preceding paragraph and to assess whether those practices and procedures can be expected to achieve the SEC's above-mentioned objectives. Two of the objectives of internal control and the practices and procedures are to provide management with reasonable but not absolute assurance that assets for which the Company has responsibility are safeguarded against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and that transactions are executed in accordance with management's authorization and recorded properly to permit the preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. Rule 17a-5(g) lists additional objectives of the practices and procedures listed in the preceding paragraph.

Because of inherent limitations in internal control and the practices and procedures referred to above, error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projection of any evaluation of them to future periods is subject to the risk that they may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the effectiveness of their design and operation may deteriorate.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the entity's ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the entity's financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal control.

A *material weakness* is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or detected by the entity's internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first and second paragraphs and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control and control activities for safeguarding securities that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined previously.

We understand that practices and procedures that accomplish the objectives referred to in the second paragraph of this report are considered by the SEC to be adequate for its purposes in accordance with the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and related regulations, and that practices and procedures that do not accomplish such objectives in all material respects indicate a material inadequacy for such purposes. Based on this understanding and on our study, we believe that the Company's practices and procedures, as described in the second paragraph of this report, were adequate at June 30, 2009, to meet the SEC's objectives.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors, management, the SEC, and other regulatory agencies that rely on rule 17a-5(g) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 in their regulation of registered brokers and dealers, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Lehrmen, Alom + Co., P.L.L.P.

October 30, 2009